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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COM MISSION
Philippine International Convention Center
Pasay City
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MAL JAY
The management of SGI Philippines General Insurance Company, Inc. (the Company) is
responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements including
the schedules attached therein, for the vears ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, in
accordance with the prescribed financial reporting framewaork indicated therein, and for
such internal control as management determines s necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud of error.

In preparing the financial statements, management 1s responsible for assessing the
Company”s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accountng unless management either
intends to liquidote the Company or {o cease operations, or has no realistic alternative bl
o do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process,

The Board of Dircetors reviews and approves the financia] statements including the
schedules attached therein, and submits the same (o the stockholders,

Teodoro Santamaris and Co., the independent auditor appointed by the stockholders, has
audited the finoneial statements of the compaty in sccordance with Philippine Standards
on Auditing, and in its report to the stockholders, has expressed its opinion on the faimess
of presentation upon completion of such andit.

: i
VICTOR C. LIMLINGA

E 5Y

Signed this p\_day of &L 2024
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Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Dircetors and Stockholders

SGI Philippines General Insurance Company, Inc.
15® Floor, Citibank Tower

8741 Paseo de Roxas

Makati Citv, Philippines

We have audited the financial statements of SGI Philippines General Insurance Company, Ine.

for the year ended December 31, 2023, on which we have rendered the attached report dated April
11, 2024.

In compliance with Revised SRC Rule 68, we are stating that the above Company has forty-nine
(49) stockholders, fourteen (14) of whom owning one hundred (100) or more shares each,

TEODORO SANTAMARIA AND CO.

s

By: gﬁrﬁ Lydia T. Santamaria

CPA License No. 083524

Yalid until December 9, 2026

BOA Acoreditation Ma, 5593

Valid until September 26, 2024

IC Accreditation Mo, 83524 — IC (Individual)

Valid until 2025 Finuncial Statements of 1 coversd institutions
IC Accreditation No. $593 - 1C (Firm)

Valid until 2025 Financial Statements of 1C covered institutions
BIR AN, 08-008055-001-2022 (Individual)

Valid until March 30, 2023

BIR AN. DE-00B055-000-2022 (Firm)

WValid until March 30, 2025

T.LN, 102-921-088

PTR Mo. 10083281 / Makati City

January 11, 2024

April 11,2024
Makati City, Philippines
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The Board of Directors and Stockholders

SG1 Philippines General Insurance Company, Inc.
15" Floor, Citibank Tower

8741 Paseo de Roxas

Makati City, Philippines

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

inioi
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SGI Philippines General Insurance
Company, Ine. (“the Company™), which comprise the statement of financial position as at December
31, 2023 and 2022, and the related statements of profit, statements of comprehensive income,

statements of changes in equity, and statements of cash Mows for the year ended, and a summary of
material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, and its financial performance

and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
(PFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report, We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics)
together with the cthical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the
Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charped with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and Fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with PFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable

the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
OF eITOr.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 10 going concern and using the
going concemn basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.




Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process,

itor's ibilities Audit Financial §

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial slatements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an sudior’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from frand or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial stalements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal contral.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a poing
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation, .




We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and (iming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal conirol that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Repulatory Requirements

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken
as a whole. The supplementary information disclosed in Note 20 of the Notes to financial statements
is presented for the purpose of filing with the Bureau of Interna] Revenue under Revenue Regulation
No. 15-2010 and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such supplementary information
is the responsibility of the management and has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
our audit of the basic financial statements. In our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated
in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken s & whole.

TEODORO SANTAMARIA AND CO.

By: Rachél Lydia T. Santamarin

CPA License No. 083524

Valid until December 9, 2026

BOA Accreditation No, 5593

Valid until September 26, 2024

IC Accreditation No. 83524 — IC (Individual)

Valid until 2025 Financial Statements of IC covered institutions
IC Acereditation No. 5593 — IC {Firm)

Walid until 2025 Financial Statements of IC covered institutions
BIR AN. 08-008055-001-2022 (Tmcdividzal)

Valid until March 30, 2025

BIR A.N. 08-008055-000-2022 (Firm)

WValid until March 30, 2025

T.LM. 102-921-088

PTR Mo. 10083281 / Makati City

Jamuary 11, 2024

April 11, 2024
Makati City, Philippines




SGIPHILIPPINES GENERAL INSURANCE COMPANY, INC,

{A Non-life Insurance Company)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31
Motes 2023 2022
i In Philippine Peso)
Assels
Cash and cash equivalents 7 99,695,118 50,116,794
Insurance receivables B 310,326,888 313,147,622
Financial asset ai FVPL 9 871,094,070 1,024,328.521
Fmancial asset at FVOC) 49 666,356 992,786
Financial asset at amoriized cost 9 328,749,097 228,525,891
Property and equipment - net 10 28.701,536 30,893,087
Deferred acquisition cosi 11 27,182,643 15,145,812
Deferred reinsurance premium 12 60,682,351 54,016,149
Deferred tax assets 24 36,681,396 24,356,675
Other assets 13 29,798,466 19,887,342
Total Assels 1,793.577,923 1,770.410.680
— —

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liahilities
Insurance ligbilities 14 336,566,109 340.915.637
Accounts and other payables 15 30,640,382 26.840.268
Retirement benefit liahility 22 6,034,781 4,557,625
Deferred mx liability 24 f, 795,661 3. 786,453
Total lighilities 380,036,933 376,099 983
Equity
Commaon stock 16 1,330,457,.200 1,330,457.200
Shire premium 16 14,912,155 14,912,155
Revaluatinn reserve on financial assel at FVOCI ] (92%,070) (602,640)
Actuarial gains on retirement

benefit liabiliry, net 17 2379514 2,081,150
Revaluation increment in propery 10 11,663,128 12,496,208
Refained eamnings 16 55.515.264 35,423,823
Treasury shares 16 (457,200) (437.200)
Total equity 1,413.540,991 1,394,310.697
Total Liahilities und_Equil}- 1,793,577,923 L7704 10,680

See accompanying notes to {inancial statements,
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SGI PHILTPPINES GENERAL INSURANCE COMPANY, INC.
(A Non-life Insurance Company)

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT

For the years ended December 31
MNotes 2023 2022
(In Philippine Peso)

Revenues
Ciross premiums written I8 293,740,276 204,906,374
Reinsurance premium cedad |8 (124,121,603) (99 444 .005)
MNet premiums retained 169,618,673 105,462 368
Increase in reserve

for unearned premiums 18 (25,179.206) (6,770,644)
Premiums eamed 144,439,467 98691, 724
Commissions carned 18 20,589,829 13,767,160
Giross underwriting income 18 165,029,295 | 12,458 883
Underwriting deductions 19 (151.893,395) (96, 760,537)
Met underwriting income 13,135.900 15,698 346
Cither income 20 61,639,288 51,354,581
Gross profit 73,775,188 67,252,927
Operating expenses
General and administrative expenses 21 (50,704,122) {36.958.940)
Interest expense 21 (63,741 (103.621)
Total expenses (30,769,863) {37.062.561)
Net income before income tax 23.005.324 36,190,367
Income tax expense 24
Final (11,926,079) (10,199.853)
Deferred 9,536,197 5.314.865

(2,389,882) (4,884 989)

Net profit 20,615,442 25,305,374
Earnings 25 6.20 7.61

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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SG1 PHILIPPINES GENERAL INSURANCE COMPANY, INC.
{A Non-life Insurance Company)

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the years ended December 31
Notes 2023 2022

{Tn Philippine Peso)

Net profit 20.615.442 25,305,378

Other comprehensive income that reeyele to

profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Reversal/lmpairment loss on financial asser at FVOCT 9 (326,430) (33,480}
Net unrealized loss on gvailable for sale

financial assets, net of tax

Other comprehensive income that do not recycele
o profit or loss in subhsequent periods:
Actuarial loss on retirement benefit plan, net of tax 17 298,364 =

Total com prehensive income 20,587,375 25,271,898

See accompanying notes 10 nancial statements.
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S5GI PHILIPPINES GENERAL INSURANCE COMPANY, INC.
(A Non-life Insurance Company)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the years ended December 31

Miles 2023 2022
i In Philippine Feso)

Cash flows from operating activities
Income belore income tax 23,005,324 30,190,367
Adjustments for:
Drepreciation 21 1,641,843 1739159
Increase in deferred acquisition costs 11 (12,036,831) i1,678.151)
Increase in reserve for unearned premiums 18 25,179,206 6,770,644
Fair value adjustment on financial assets at FYOC] 4 (1,514,010) (433.247)
Loss/(gain) on sale of fixed asset 20 618,565 {105,000}
Interest income 20 (S9.498,161) {50,389 B33)
Retirement benelit expense 2,22 1,574,974 1,436,176
Prior year adjustments - Income tax 16 (8,598) -
Operating loss before working capital changes (21,037,687) (12.469.885)
[ Decrease)/increase in insurance receivables 8 1.820,73 (100.692.678)
Increase in other assets 13 (2,394,280 (2.836.787)
i Decrease)/increase in insurance contract liabilities 14 (36,194,937) 04,942,499
Increase in accounts and other payables 15 3.500,114 9,219,262
Met cash absorbed by operations (53,006,054) (11.837.097)
Income taxes paid 24 (12,320,253) (10,199 853)
Nel cash used in opersting activities (65,326,308) (22.036,950)
Cash flows from investing activities
Settlement{acquisition) of government bonds 9 54,206,689 (51.096.329)
Acquisition of property and equipment 10 (283,373) (286.214)
Disposal of property and equipment 1 - 42,109
Progeeds in sale of fixed assets 20 g 105,000
Interest income earmed 13,20 51,981,315 50364 645
MNet cash provided by/{used in) investing activities 105,904,632 (B70.788)
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 40,578,324 (22.907.738)
Cuash and cash equivalents, January 1 7 50,116,794 82,024,532
Cash and cash equivalents, December 31 7 099,695,118 59,116,794

See accompanyving notes to financial stalements,
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SG1 PHILIPPINES GENERAL INSURANCE COMPANY, INC,

(A Non-life Insurance Company)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2023
{Amounts in Philippine Peso Unless Otherwise Stated)

2‘.

Corporate Information

SGI Philippines General Insurance Company, Inc. (the Company) is a domestic corporation
which was incorporated in the Philippines on April 2, 1964,

The company is engaged in the business of nonlife insurance Indemnifying any person against
loss, damage. or lHability arising from unknown or contingent events. 15 current lines include
all kinds ol insurance (except life), reinsurance, insurance on buildings, automobhiles, cars, and
other motor vehicles goods and merchandise, goods in transit, goods in storage, fire insurance,
earthquake, insurance against accident. and all other forms of undertakings.

As at December 31, 2023, the Company's total paid-up capital s 95% owned by Shriram
General Insurance Co, Lid., a corporation organized under the laws of India. The ownership of
the rest of the stockholders ranges from less than 1% 1o 2%,

The registered office and principal address of the Company is at 15" Floor, Citibank Tower,
8741 Paseo De Roxas, Makati City, Philippines,

Summary of Material Accounting Policies

Statement of Compliance

The accompanying financial statements were prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards (PFRS). The term PFRS in general includes all applicable PFRS,
Philippine Accounting Standards {PAS), Interpretation of the Philippine Interpretations
Committee (PIC). Standing Interpretation Committee (SIC), and International Financial
Reporting Standards Interpretations Committee (IFRS 1C) which have been adopted by the
Financial Reporting Standurds Council (FRSC) and approved by the Board of Accountancy
{BOA) and the Securities and Exchanpe Commission (SEC).

Basis of Preparation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention
method, as modified for financial assets at FVPL, financial assets at FVOCI and financial assets
at amortized cost. The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires
the use of critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise judgment in
applyving the Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant o the financial
statements are discussed in Mote 3.

Functional and Presentation Currency
These financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso, the Company's tunctional
currency and all values are rounded to the nearest Peso, except when otherwise indicated.

Current Versus Nop-current Classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position on
current/non-current classification.

Page &



SG1 Philippines General Insurance Company, Ine,
Moes to financial statements

An asset is corrent when it is:

Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed within a normal operating
cyele

Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

Expected to be realized within twelve months aller the reporting period: or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

It is expected to be settled within a normal aperating cycle;

It is held primarily for trading;

It is due 1o be settled within twelve months after the reporting period:; or

There is no unconditional 1ight to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve

months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Dreferred tax assets and habilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Adoption of Mew or Revised Standards, Amendments to Standards and [nterpretations

The Company adopted the following new standards and amendments to standards effective
January 1. 2023, New standards and amendment to standards that do not materially affect the
financial statements of the Company are not included here,

Eftective beginning on ar befowe Jameary 1, 2023

Amendments to PAS | Classification of Liahilities ax Current or Non-curvent

The amendments to paragraph 64 o 76 of PAS | to specify the requirements for olassifying

ligbilities as current or non=current. The amendments clarify:

= What is meant by a right to defer setilement

o  Thata right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period

o That classification is unafTected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral
right

s That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself an equity
instrument, would the terms of a liability not impact its elassification

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and must be applied retrospectively.

Amendments to PAS 1 and PFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting Policies
The amendmenis 1o PAS | require companies to disclose their material accounting policy
information rather than their signilicanl accounting policies. The amendments Lo PFRS
Practice Statement 2 provide guidance on how to apply the concept of materality 1o
accounting policy disclosures, The amendments to PAS 1 will be effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after | January 2023, with early application permitted.

Amendments fo PAS 8 Definition of Accounting Esfimeares

The amendments clarify how companies should distinguish changes in accounting policies
from changes in accounting estimates. That distinction is important because changes in
accounting estimates are applied prospectively only to future transactions and other future

Page 7



SG1 Philippines General Insurance Company, Ine,
Mevess o financial smtements

events, but changes in accounting policies are generally also applied retrospectively 1o past
transactions and other past events. The amendments to PAS 8 will be effective for annual
reporting perinds beginning on or after | January 2023, with early application permitted.

o dAmendments 1o PAS 12 Deferred Tox Relared ro Assers and Liahilities Avising from a
Kingle Transaction
The amendments require companies to recognize deferred tax on transactions that, on
initial recognition, give rise to equal amounts of taxable and deductible temporary
differences. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after | January 2023, Earlier application is permitted,

Future Adoption of New or Revised and Amendments 1o Standards

The Company will adopt the following new standards and amendments to standards when these
become effective and applicable. New standards and amendments to standards that do not have
a material effect on the financial statements of the Company are not included here.

Effective beginning on or affer Jannary £, 2024

= Amendments to PAS |, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non=curment
The amendments clarify paragraphs 69 to 76 of PAS 1. Presentation of Financial
Statements, to specify the requirements for classitying liabilities as curtent or non-current.
The amendments clarify:
What is meant by a right to defer settlement.,
That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period
That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral
right
That oaly il an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself an equity instrument
woulld the terms of a liability not impact its classification
The amendments are effective for annuoal reporting periods beginning on or after January
1, 2023 and must be applied retrospectively. However, in November 2021, the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) tentatively decided to defer the effective date to no
earlier than January 1. 2024,

Effective beginning on or after Jannary 1. 2023

o PFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

PFRS 17 is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering
recognition and measurement. presentation and disclosure. Once effective, PFRS 17 will
replace PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts. This new standard on insurance contracts applies to
all types of insurance contracts (Le.. life, non-life, direct insurance and re-insurance),
regardless of the type of entities that issue them, as well as to certain puarantees and
financial instruments with discretionary participation features. A few scope exceptions will
apply.

The overall objective of PFRS 17 is to provide an accounting model for insurance contracts
that is more useful and consistent for insurers. In contrast to the requirements in PFRS 4,
which wre largely based on grandfathering previous local accounting policies, PFRS 17
provides a comprehensive model for insurance contracts, covering all relevant accounting
aspects. The core of PFRS 17 is the general model, supplemented by:

A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee
approach)

A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainky for short-duration
coniracts

Page §



SG1 Philippines General Insurance Company, Ine,
Mevess o financial smtements

On December 15, 2021, the FRSC amended the mandatory effective date of PFRS 17 from
January 1, 2023 to January |, 2025, This is consistent with Circular Letter No. 202(-62
issued by the Insurance Commission which deferred the implementation of PFRS 17 by
two (2) vears after its effective date as decided by the IASB. PFRS 17 is effective for
reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023, with comparative figures required.
Early application is permitted,

Amendments to PFRS 17, Initial Application of PFRS 17 and PFRS 9— Comparative
Information

The amendment adds a transition option for a classification overlay to address possible
accounting mismatches between financial assets and insurance contract liabilities in the
comparative information presented on initial application of PFRS 17. The amendments
wiould be available for;

any financial assets, including those held in respect of an activity that is unconnected to
contracts within the scope of PFES 17; and

baoth entities that initially apply PFRS 9 at the same time as they apply PFRS 17, and entities
that had already applied IFRS 9 before the initial application of PFRS 17 where those
entities redesignate financial assets applying paragraph C29 of PFRS 17,

The transition option would:

be available. on an instrument-by-instrument basis;

allow an entity to present comparative information as if the classification and measurement
requirements of PFRS 9 had been applied to that financial asset, but not require an entity
to apply the impairment requirements of PFRS 9; and

require an entity that applies the classification overlay 1o a financial asset o use reasonable
and supportable information available at the transition date to determine how the entity
expects that financial asset 1o be classified applying PFRS 9,

The amendment does not amend the transition requirements in PFRS 9. At the date ol initial
application of IFRS 9, an entity is required to apply the transition requirements in IFRS 9
to a financial asset, regardless of whether it has applied the classification overlay to that
asset, The amendment |7 is effective for reporting pericds beginning on or afier January
1, 2025, Early application is permitted.

IC Circular Letter {FCLY No. 2016-67

On December 28, 2006 the 1C issued [C Cireular Letter (1CL) Mo, 20016-67, Vel waion Stancards
Sor Non-life Insurance Paolicy Reserves. which supersedes Circular Letter No. 2015-32. The
following are the more significant provisions of this Circular:

A non-life insurance company shall maintain reserves for its written policies, which shall be
charged as a liability in any determination of its financial condition, as required by the IC, in
aceordance to Sections 219 and 220 of the New lnsurance Code (RA 10607). as well as this
Valuation Standards for Life Insurance Policy Reserves,

Claims Liabilities

a. Claims liahilities for both direct business and assumed treaty and facultative
reinsurance business shall be caleulated as the sum of outstanding claims reserve,
claims handling expense and IBNE, with MfAD.

b, Oustanding claims reserve shall be based on actual elaims reported but have not been
settled as of valuation date. The company shall ensure integrity of the data inputs as
well as minimize uncertainties in the claims processing,

c. The IBNR shall be calculated based on standard actuarial projection techniques or
combinations of such technigues, such as but not limited to the chain ladder approach,
the expected loss ratio approach, and the Bornhuetter-Ferguson (BF) method. The
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SG1 Philippines General Insurance Company, Ine,
Moes to financial statements

Actuary shall determine the appropriateness of the methodology considering the
characteristics of the data, such as maturity of the business.

d.  The Claims liabilities shall include a provision for Claims handling expenses, which
covers the estimated expenses of settling all claims, both reported and unreported,
outstanding as of valuation date.

e. The Actuary shall ensure the reliability ol the expected loss ratio by oblaining estimates
from various sources, =uch as underwriters, the business plan, pricing actuaries, market
statistics, or from a historic view of profitability and loss ratios.

f.  In valuing Claims liabilities, the Actuary should consider other factors such as but not
limited to: varying expense structure in run-off sifuations. large losses arising from
significant past evenis, operational changes in claims management, underwriting
changes such as business mix and premium rate changes, changes in reinsurance
program and changes in claims handling process, and external conditions,

g, Toensure sufficiency of reserves, the Actuary shall conduct a back-testing exercise of
the IBNE by comparing the previous year’s IBNR of expected current year ¢laim
developments, with actual current year claim developments, In cases where the IBNR
has proven insufTicient 1o cover actual claims development, the Actuary shall revisit
the assumptions for IBNR valuation and document the rationale for this deterioration,

1C Circular Letter (1CL) No, 2016-69

On December 28, 2016 the 1C issued [C Circular Letter (1CL) No. 2016-69. Jmplementation
Beguivements for Financial Reporting, Valwation Standards for Insteance Policy Reserves,
arid Amencled Risk-Baved Capital (RBC2) Framework

The following are the more significant provisions of this Circular;

Financial Reporting Framework (FRF): CL No, 2016-65,
Valuation Standards lor Life Insurance Poliey Reserves: CL Mo, 201 6-66
Valuation Standards for Mon-Life Insurance Policy Reserves: CL No. 2016-67.

ol

For the initial year of implementation, the requirements will be the relaxed as follows:
Premivmy Liahilities

For 2017, companies shall be allowed to set up as Premium Liabilities the Unearned Premium
Reserves (UPR) instead of the higher of the UPR and Unexpired Risk Reserve (URR),
determined in accordance with Section7.2 of the Circular Letter No. 2016-67,

Starting 2018, the Premium Liahilities shall be determined in accordance with the valuation
standards preseribed under the Circular Letter NWo, 2016-67.

Claims Liahilities

Claims Liabilities shall be determined in accordance with the valuation standards preseribed
under Section 8 of CL Mo, 2016-67,

For 2017, the companies shall be allowed to set the Margin for Adverse Deviation (MfAD) to
zero (0.

1C Circular Letter (ICL) No. 2018-14

On March 9. 2018 the [C issued IC Circular Letter (ECL) No. 2018-19, dmerddment to Circalar
Legter No,o 2006-68 “lmplemeniaiion Requivemenis for Fingncial Reporting, Valwation
Standards  for Insurance. Policy Reserves, and Amended Risk-Based Capital (RBC2)
Framework, "
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The following are the more significant provisions of this Circular:

Margin for Adverse Deviation

MFAD shall be company-specific. The companies shall submit to the 1C the documents and
certification signed by an [C-accredited actuary to support the computation of their MFAD.,

Companies shall be allowed 1o set the MIAD as follows:

Period Covered Percemage (%e) of company-specific
MIAD

2017 (%

2018 S0

2019 onwards [ 0%

This amendatory circular shall take effect immediately. Except as amended hereby. all other
provisions of CL No, 2016-69 shall remain effective.

The above [CLs become effective on January 1, 2017, The Company assesses the effect of this
cirgular and has made disclosures in the notes 1o the financial sttement based on its parallel
run as of December 31, 2023 and 2022,

Maierial Accounting Policies

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and with banks, Cash equivalents are shori=term, highly liguid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of
three months or less from dates of acquisition and that are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value,

Foreign Currency Translation

Transactions in foreign currency are initially recorded at the functional currency rate ruling at
the date of the transaction, Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated wsing the functional currency rite of exchange ruling at the reporting date.
MNonmonetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rate as at the date of the initial transaction and are not
subsequently restated, All foreign exchange differences are taken to profit or loss, except where
it relates to equity securities where gains or losses are recognized directly in other
comprehensive income. the gain or loss is then recognized net of the exchange component in
other comprehensive income,

Financial Instruments

Date of Recognition

Financial instruments are recognized in the statements of financial position when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument, AN regular way of purchuses
or sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date. which is the date the Company
commits to purchase or sell the assel. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.

The Company has no financial liabilities at FVPL or derivatives for the vears ended December
31, 2023 and 2022,
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Classification, Measurement and Keclassification of Financial Assets in Accordance with PFRS 9
The classification and measurement of financial assets is driven by the entfity’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial
assets. The classification and measurement of financial assets are described below and in the
succeeding pages,

Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

Financial assets are measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

e the asset is held within the company”’s business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows (“held to collect™): and.

» the contractual terms of the instrument give rise. on specified dates. to cash flows that are
SPPI on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets meeting these criteria are measured initially at fair value plus transaction
costs. These are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment in value. Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows, the Company assesses whether the financial instrumenis’ cash flows represent
SPPL In making this assessment, the Company considers whether the contractual cash flows
are consistent with a basic lending arrangement, i.e., interest includes only consideration for
the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks and a profit margin that is
consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where the contractual terms introduce exposure
to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the related financial
asset is classified and measured at FVPL.

The Company”s financial assets at amortized cost are presented in the statement of financial
position as Cash and Cash Equivalents. Loans and Other receivables, Investment securities at
amortized cost and certain accounts under Other Assets account in the statement of financial
position. For purposes of reporting cash fows, cash and cash equivalents include cash and
other cash ftems, and investmenl securities at amortized cost with original maturities of three
maonths or less from placement date,

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial assets except for those that are subsequently identified as credit-impaired. For
credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount
of the financial assets (after deduction of the loss allowance). The interest carned is recognized
in the statement of income as part of Interest [ncome,

Financial Assets at Fair Walue Through Other Comprehensive Income
The Company accounts for financial assets al FYOCI if the assets meet the following
canditions:

o they are held under a business model whose objective s 10 hold to collect the associated
cash flows and sell (“hold to colleet and sell™); and,

# the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise to cash flows that are SPPI on the
principal amount cutstanding.

At initial recogmition. the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-hy-
instrument basis) to designate equity investments as at FVOCT however, such designation is
not permitted 1F the equity investment is held by the Company for trading or as mandatorily
required to be classified as FVPL. The Company has designated equity instruments as at
FYOC!I on initial application of PFRS 9,
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Financial assets at FVOCI are initially measured at fair value plus transaction cosis.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value, with no deduction for any disposal costs, Gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value, including the foreign exchange component. are
recognized in other comprehensive income. net of any effects arising from income taxes. and
are reported as part of equity. When the asset is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in the equity account is not reclassilied to prolit or loss but is reclassitied
directly 1o Retained Earnings account except for those debt securities classified as 'Y O]
wherein fair value changes are recyeled back to profit or loss,

Any dividends earned on holding equity instruments are recognized in profit or loss as part of
Miscellaneous under Other Ciperating Income account. when the Company s right to receive
dividends is established. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the Company, and. the amount of dividend can be measured reliably, unless the
dividends clearly represent recovery of a part of the cost of the investment,

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

Financial assets that are held within a dilferent business model other than “held 1o collect™ or
“hold to collect and sell™ are categorized at FVYPL. Further. irrespective of business model,
financial assets whose contractual cash flows are not SPPI are accounted for at FVPL. Also,
equity securitics are classified as financial assets at FVPL, unless the Company designates an
equity investment that is not held for trading as at FVOC] at initial recognition. The Company's
financial assets at FVPL include equity securities which are held for trading purposes or
designated as at FVPL. Financial assets at FYPL are measured at fair value with gains or losses
recognized in profit or loss as part of Trading Gain — net under Other Operating Income in the
statements of income. Related transaction costs are recognized directly as expense in profit or
loss. The fair values of these financial assets are determined by reference (o active market
transactions or using valuation technique when no active market exists. Interest earned on these
investments is recorded as Interest Income and dividend income is reported as part of Dividends
both under Other Income account in the statements of income. Financial assets with embedded
derivatives are considered in thelr entirety when determining whether their cash flows are SPPL
The Company can only reclassify financial assets if the objective of its business model for
managing those linancial assets changes,

Accordingly, the Company is required to reclassify financial assets:

(i) from amortized cost to FVPL, if the objective of the business model changes so that the
amortized cost eriteria are no longer met: and,

(iiy from FVPL to amortized cost. if the objective of the business model changes so that the
amortized cost criteria start to be met and the characteristic of the instrument’s contractual
cash flows meet the amortized cost criteria,

A change in the objective of the Company’s business model will take effect only at the
beginning of the next reporting period [oliowing the change in the business model.

Eifective Interesi Rate Method and [nterest Income

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest rate (EIR) methed for all financial
instrument measured at amortized cost and financial instrument designated at FVPL. Interest
income on interest bearing financial assets measured at FVOCT are recorded by using the IR
method. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period. to the net
carrving amount of the financial asset. The EIR is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition. fees and costs that are an integral part of EIR. The
Company recognizes interest income using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of
a constant rate of return over the expected life of the loan. Hence, it recognizes the effect of
potentially different interest rates charged at various stages, and other characteristics of the
product life cycle (including prepayments, penalty interest and charges). If expectations
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regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than credit risk, the
adjustment is booled as a positive (negative) adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset in
the balance sheet with an increase (reduction) in Interest income. The adjustment is
subsequently amortized through interest and similar income in the statements of income. The
Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of
financial assets other than credit-impaired assets. For financial assets that have become credit-
impaired subsequent to initial recognition. interest income is caleulated by applying the
effective interest rate 1o the net carrying amount of the financial assets (afier deduction of the
loss allowance), If the asset is no Jonger credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income
reverts to the gross basis, For financial assets that were credit-impaired on initial recognition,
interest income is calculated by applying a credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the
amortized cost of the asset. The calculation of interest income does not revert to a gross basis,
even il the credit risk of the assel improves,

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses its ECL on a forward-looking basis associated with its Mnancial assets
carried at amortized cost, debt instruments measured at FVOCT and other contingent accounts,
Mo impairment loss is recognized on equity investments. Recognition of credit losses or
impairment is no longer dependent on the Company's identification of a credit loss event.
Instead, the Company considers a broader range of information in assessing credit risk and
mieasuring expected credit losses, including past events, current conditions, reasonable and
supportable forecasts that affect collectability of the future cash flows of the financial assets.
The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal 1o lifetime ECL, except for the
following financial instruments for which they are measured as | 2-month ECL:

debt securities that are identified 1o have “low credit risk” at the reporting date; and,
o ather financial instruments (other than lease receivables) on which credit risk has not
increased significantly sinee their initial recognition.

For these financial instruments, the allowance for impairment is based on 12-month ECL
associated with the probability of default of a financial instrument in the next 12 months
{referred to as “Stage | financial instruments). Unless there has been a significant increase in
credit risk subsequent to the initial recognition of the financial asset, a lifetime ECL (which are
the expected shortfalls in contractual cash flows, considering the potential for default at any
point during the life of the Mnancial asset) will be recognized (referred to as “Stage 27 financial
instruments). “Stage 27 financial instruments also include those loan accounts and facilities
where the credit risk has improved and have been reclassified from *Stage 37, A lifetime ECL
shall be recognized for *Stage 37 financial instruments, which include financial instruments that
are subsequently credit-impaired, as well as purchased or originated credit impaired (POCI)
assets,

Measurement of ECL The key elements used in the caleulation of ECL are as follows:

»  Probability of Default (PD) — it is an estimate of likelihood of a borrower defaulting on
its financial obligation over a given tme horizon, either over the next 12 months (12-
month PDY or over the remaining lifetime (lifetime PD) of the oblization,

o Loss Given Defaalt (LGD) = it is an estimate of loss arising in case where a default oceurs
al a given time {either over the next 12 months or | 2-manth LGD), or over the remaining
lifetime or lifetime LGD). 11 is based on the difference hetween the contractual cash flows
of a financial instrument due from a counterparty and those the Company would expect to
receive, including the realization of any collateral. It is presented as a percentage loss per
unit of exposure af the time of default,
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o Exposwe al Default (EAD) — it represents the gross carrying amount of the financial
instruments subject to impairment calculation: henece, this is the amowit that the Group
eapects to be awed at the time of default over the next 12 months ( 12-month EAD) or over
the remaining lifetime (lifetime EAD). In case of a loan commitment, the Company shall
include the undrawn balance (up to the current contractual limit) at the fime of default
should it occur,

The measurement of the ECL reflects:

(i) an unbiased and probability=weighted amoumt that is determined by evaluating a range of
possible outcomes;

(1) the time value of money; and,

{iii)reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at
the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions, Measurement of the expecied credit losses is determined by a probability-
weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected life of the financial instrument.

Derecognition of Financial Assets

The financial assets (or where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of
financial assets) are derecognized when the contractual rights 1o receive cash flows from the
financial instruments expire, or when the financial assets and all substantial risks and rewards
of ewnership have been transferred to another paty. If the Company neither fransfers nor
retains substamially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues 1o control the
transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an associated
liahility for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognize the
financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

Other Financial Receivables

Other financial receivables include “Insurance receivables” which are recorded when due and
measured at the original inveice amount then subsequently carried at amortized cost less
allowance from any uncollectible amount, The carrying value of insurance receivables is
reviewed from impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable, the impairment loss is recorded in the Statement of comprehensive
income,

Impairment of Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

The Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If it is determined that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not. the
asset is included in a group of financial assets with similar credit isk characteristics and that
group of financial assets is collectively assessed [or impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognized are
not included in a collective assessment of impalrment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets carried at amortized
cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurted) discounted at the fnancial assel’s original effective interest
rate {i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). The carrving amount of the
asset shall be reduced either directly or through use of an allowance account, The amount of
the loss shall be recognized in the statements of comprehensive income. The asset together
with the associated allowances are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realized or has been transferred to the Company.
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If. in & subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related ohjectively to an event occurring afier the impairment was recognized. the previously
recopnized impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is
recognized in the statements of comprehensive income, to the extent that the carrying value of
the asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date,

Impairment of Insurance Receivable

A provision for impairment is made when there is objective evidence (such as probability of
insclvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtar) that the company will not be able
to callect all the amounts due under the original terms of the invoice. The carrying amount of
the receivable is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Impaired debis are
derecognized when they are assessed as uncollectible,

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid to transfer a lability inan
orderly transaction belween market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liahility takes place either:

* In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
* Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible 1o the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability 15 measured using assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or lability, assuming that market participants act in their
veonomic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a nonfinancial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use,

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

o Level | —Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets and
liabilities

o Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that us significant to
the fair value measurement is directly ar indirectly observahle

¢ Level 3 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservahle

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-
dssessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
mieasurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Page 16



SG1 Philippines General Insurance Company, Ine,
Moes to financial statements

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the assets or liahility and the
level of the fair value hierarchy.

Oither Financial Liabilities

lzzued financial instruments or their components, which are not classilied as financial liabilities
at FVPL are classified as other financial liabilities, where the substance of the contractual
arrangement results in the Company having an obligation either to deliver cash or another
financial asset to the holder or lender, or to satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of
o fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own
equity instruments.

After initial measurement, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method. Amortized cost is caleulated by taking into account
ity discount o premium on the issue and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest
rale, The amortization is included as part ol interest expense in the statements of comprehensive
income, Any effect of restatement of foreign currency-denominated liabilities is recognized in
foreign exchange gains/ (losses) account in the statements of comprehensive income,

As at Decemnber 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company”s other financial liabilities include insurance
liabilities and accounts and other payables.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are derecognized in the statement of financial position only when the
obligations are extinguished either through discharge, cancellation or expiration. The
difference between the carrving amount of the financial hability derecognized and the
consideration paid or payable is recognized in profit or loss.

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the resulting net amount, considered as
a single financial asset or financial liability. is reported in the statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention o settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultanecusly. The
right of set-0ff must be available at the end of the reporting period, that is, it is not contingent
on [uture event, It must also be enforceable in the nomal course of business, in the event of
default, and in the event of insolveney or bankruptey; and must be legally enforceable Tor both
entity and all counterparties to the financial instruments.

Product Classification

Insurance contracts are those contracts where the Company (the insurer) has accepted
significant insurance risk from another party (the policyholders) by agrecing to compensate the
policvholders il a specified uncertain [uture event (the insured event) adversely affects the
policvhalders. As a general puideline, the Company determines whether it has significant
insurance risk. by comparing benefits paid with benefits payable if the insured event did not
occur, Insurance contracts can also transfer financial risk.

Onee a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract
for the remainder of its lifetime, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this
period, unless all rghis and obligation are extinguished or have expired. Investment contracts
can however be reclassified as insurance contracts after inception i the insurance risk becomes
significant.
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Insurance and investment contracts are further classified as being with or withour discretionary
participation features (DPF). DPF is a contractual right 1o receive, as a supplement o
puaranteed contracts, additional benefits that are likely to be a significant portion of the total
contractual benefits, whose amount or timing is contractually at the discretion of the issuer, and
that are contractually based on the performance of a specified pool of contracts or a specified
type of contract, realized and or unrealized investment returns on a specilied pool of assets held
by the issuer, or the profit or loss of the company, fund or other entity that issues the contract.

For financial options and guarmntees which are not closely related to the host insurance contract
andfor investment contract with DPF, bifurcation is required to measure these embedded
financial derivatives separately at FVPL. Bifurcation is not required if the embedded derivative
is itself an insurance contract and/or investment contract with DPF or when the host insurance
contract and/or investment contract with DPF itself is measured at FYPL. The options and
guarantees within the insurance comtracts issued by the Company are treated as derivative
financial instruments are clearly and closely related 1o the host insurance and therefore not
bifurcated subsequently, As such, the Company does not separately measure oplions to
surrender insurance contracts for a Mxed amount (or an amount based on a fxed amount and
an interest rate). Likewise. the embedded derivative in unit-linked insurance contracts linking
the payments on the contract to units of an interval investment fiend meets the definition of an
insurance contract and is therefore not accounted separately from the host insurance contract,

Insurance Contract

Now-Life insurance contract labilities, Non-life insurance contracts are recognized when the
contracts are entered into and the premiums are recognized, The reserve for Non-life insurance
contracts is calculated on the basis of a prudent prospective actuarial valuation method where
he assumptions used depend on the circumstances prevailing in each life operation.
Assumptions and actuarial valuation methods are also subjeet to provisions of the Insurance
Code (the Code) and guidelines set by the Insurance Commission.

nswrance comtracts with fived wnd guaranteed ferms. The liability is determined as the
expected discounted value of the benefit pavments less the expected discounted value of the
theoretical premiums that would be required to meet the benefits based on the valuation
assumptions used. The ahility is based on mortality, morbidity and investment income
assumptions that are established at the time the contract is issued. The Company has different
assumptions for different products, However, liahilities for contractual benefits are computed
Lo comply with statutory requirements, which require discount rates 1o be not more than 6%
compound interest and mortality and morbidity rates to be in accordance with the standard table
of mortality and morbidity. Reserves are computed per thousands of sum insured and depend
on the issue age and policy duration. The net change in legal policy reserves during the vear is
taken to profit or loss, This is not applicable to the Company,

Contract Classification
The company issues short-term insurance contracts categorized as:

Casualty insurance contracts protect the assured against the risk of causing them harm to third
parties as a result of their legitimate activities. Damages covered include both contractual and
non-contractual events,

Property insurance contracts mainly compensate the Company s assured for damages suffered
to their properties or for the value of propeny lost,

Short-duration accident insurance protects the assured from the consequences of events such
as death or disability.
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An insurance coniract remains in force at the inception date of policy uniil its maturity
regardless of number of claims reported and for as long as the coverage is sufficient.

el isition {
Costs that vary with-and are primarily related to the acquisition of new and renewal insurance
contracts such as commissions, certain underwriting and policy 1ssue costs and inspection fees,
are deferred and charged o expense in proportion to premium revenue recognized.

Claim Cost Recognition
Liabilities for unpaid claim costs and claim adjustment expenses relating to insurance contracts
are accrued when insured events occur.

The liabilities for unpaid claims {including those for incurred but not reported) are based on
the estimated ultimate cost of settling the claims. The method of determining such estimates
and establishing reserves are continually reviewed and updated. Changes in estimates of claim
costs resulting From the continuous review process and differences between estimates and
payments for claims are recognized as income or expense of the period in which the estimates
are changed ar payments are made,

Share in recoveries on claims are evaluated in terms of the estimated realizable values of the
salvage recoverable, Recoveries on claims are recognized in the Statement of comprehensive
income and expenses in the period the recoveries are determined. Recoverable amounts are
presented as part of Reinsurance assets,

Estimated recoveries on settled and unsettled claims are evaluated in terms of the estimated
realizable values of the salvage recoverable and deducted from the liability for unpaid claims.

Liability Adequacy Test

At each reporting date, Hability adequacy tests are performed o ensure the adequacy of the
insurance liabilities. The test considers current best estimates of all contractual cash flows,
claims and claims handling cost. If the test shows that the liability is inadequate, the entire
deficiency is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

Reinsurance

The Company utilizes reinsurance agreements Lo minimize its exposure 1o large losses in all
aspects of its insurance business. Reinsurance permils recovery ol a portion of losses from
reinsurers, although it does not discharge the primary liability of the Company as direct insurer
of the risks reinsured.

Amounts recoverable from insurers that relate 1o paid and unpaid claims and claim adjustment
expenses are classified as assels. Reinsurance receivables and the related liabilities are reported
separately.

Reinsurance commissions are deferred and deducted from the applicable deferred acquisition
costs, subject to the same amortization methed as the related acquisition costs,

An impairment review is performed at each reporting period or more frequently when
indication of impairment arises during the yvear. Tmpairment occurs when ohjective evidence
exists that the Company may not recover outstanding amounts under the terms of the contract
and when the impact on the amounts that the Company receives from the reinsurer can be
measured reliably. The impairment loss is recorded is charged to profit or loss,
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The Company also assumes reinsurance risk in the normal course of business. Premiums and
claims onassumed reinsurance are recognized as income and expenses in the same manner as
they would be it the reinsurance were considered direct business, taking into account the
praduct classification of the reinsured business. Reinsurance liabilities represent balance due
to reinsurance companies, which are included in insurance payable account in the Statement of
financial position, Amounts pavable are estimated in a manner consistent with the associated
insuranee contract.

Reinsurance assets or liabilities are derecognized when the contractual rights are extinguished
or expired or when the contract is transferred to another party,

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, including owner-occupicd properties, are computed at cost less
aceumulated depreciation, amortization and accumulated impairment in value. Depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives as follows:

OfMice premises and improvements 40 years
Furniture and office equipment 10} vears
Transporation and computer equipmient 5 years

The cost of an assel comprises its purchase price and directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to working condition for its intended use, Expenditures for additions, improvements and
renewals are capitalized; expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged o operations
as incurred, Leasehald improvements are amortized over estimated useful life of the
improvements or the term of the relate lease, whichever is shorter. When assets are sold, retired
or otherwise disposed of, their cost and the related accumulated depreciation are removed from
the accounts and any resulting gain or loss charged to current operations,

The residual values and estimated useful lives of property and equipment are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting period.

ecogniti rop n ipme

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economie
benefits are expected 1o arise from the continued use of the asset, Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (caleulated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amouni of the iem) is included in the Statement ol comprehiensive income in the
vear the item is derecognized. This is not applicable to items that still have useful lives but are
currently classified as idle. Depreciation continues for those items until fully depreciated or
disposed.

Impairment of Non-linancial Assets

Al each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that its non-
financial assets may be impaited. When an indicator of impairment exists (or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required), the Company estimates the recoverable amount of
the impaired assets. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use, Value in use is the present value of future cash flows expected to be derived
from an asset while fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an
asset in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable and willing parties less cost of
disposal. Where the carrying amount of an assel exceeds its recoverable amount, the impaired
assel is written down 1o its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated Tuture
cash flows are discounted 1o their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that retlecis
current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
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An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period when it arises, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is charged directly to the
revaluation increment of the said asset.

For non-financial assets, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is
any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such indication exists, the net recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed only it there has been a change in the estimates used o
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized, If that
is the case, the carrving amount of the asset is increased to its net recoverable amount. The
reversal can be made only to the extent that the resulting carrying value does not exceed the
carrying value that would have been determined. net of depreciation and amaortization. had no
impairment loss been recognized, Such reversal is recognized in profit or loss unless the asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.
After such a reversal, the depreciation is adjusted in future vears to allocate the asset’s revised
carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining life,

Related Party Relationships and Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control or exercise significant
influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, This includes; (1)
individual owning, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are
controlled by, or under common control with, the Company; (2) associates; (3) individuals
owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Company that gives them
significanmt influence over the Company and close members of the family of any such
individual.

Transactions between related parties are accounted for at arms” length prices or on terms similar
to those offered to non-related entities in an cconomically comparable market.

Equity

Capital stock is determined using the nominal value of shares that have been issued. Share
premium represents the excess of consideration received when the Company issues shares over
its par. Incremental costs incurred directly attributable to the issuance of new shares are treated
as deduction from APIC.

Treasury shares are portion of shares thal a company keeps in their own treasury, Treasury
stock may have come from a repurchase or buyback from shareholders: or it may have never
been issued to the public in the first place. These shares don’t pay dividends, have no voting
rights, and should not be included in shares outstanding caleulations,

Revaluation reserve on financial assets al FVOCI comprise of gains and losses due changes in
Tair value of linancial assets al FYOCI,

Revaluation increment in property and equipment results from appraisal of property and
equipment reduced by depreciation on the appraisal increment.

Retained earnings’ (deficit) include all current and prior period results as disclosed in the
Statement of comprehensive income.
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Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow o
the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific criteria must
also be met before revenue is recognized:

o  Premiums are recognized as revenue from short duration insurance contracts over the
period of the contracts using the 24™ method, except for marine cargo insurance contracts.
The gross premiums writien for marine cargo insurance policies for the first ten months of
the year and the last two months of the preceding year are recognized as premium income
in the current vear. The portion of the premiums written that relate to the unexpired periods
of the policies at Reporting periods and the last two months of marine cargo policies are
accounted for as reserve for uneamed premiums and presented in the Habilities section of
the Statement of lnancial position, under “Reserve for unesmed premiums™. The related
reinsurance premiums that pertain to the unexpired periods accounted as for as deferred
reinsurance premiums shown in the Statement of financial position. The net changes in
these accounts between Reporting period are charged to or credited against income for the
vear;

o Commissions ingome are recognized as revenue from short duration insurance contracts
over the period of the contracts using the 24™ method, except for marine cargo insurance
contracts where the deferred portion pertains to the commissions for the last two months
of the year. The portion of the commissions that relates 1o the unexpired periods of the
policies at the reporting period is accounted for as “Deferred reinsurance commissions™
and presented in the liabilities section of the statement of financial position.

»  Dividend income 15 recognized when the right to receive dividends is established;

» Interest income is recognized as the interest accrues (taking into account the effective vield
on the interest);

Revenue is measured by reference to the fair value of consideration received or receivable by
the Company for the services provided, excluding value added tax (VAT).

Expense Recognitiol

Expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the accourting period in the form of
outflows or decrease of assets or incwrence of liabilities that result in decrease equity, other
than those relating to distributions to equity participants. Expenses are recognized when the
related revenue is earned or when the service is incurred,

Leases

Policy applicable upon adoption of PERS 16

Al Ineeption of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is. or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease i the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
assel Tor a period of time inexchanpe for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys
the right to contral the use of an identified asset, the Company uses the definition of a lease in
PFRS 16. This policy is applied to contracts entered into on or after January 1, 2019,

Short=term feases and leases of fow-valie assets

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases of low-
value assets and short-term leases. The Company recognizes the lease payments associated
with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,
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Retirement Benefit Costs

Retirement benefits liability, as presented in the statement of financial position, is the aggregate
of the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period reduced
by the fair value of plan assets, if any. adjusted for the effect of limiting a net defined asset to
the asset ceiling. The asset ceiling is the present value of any economic benefits available in
the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in [ulure contributions to the plan.

The cost of providing benefits under defined benefit plan is actuarially determined using the
projecied unit credit method, The retirement benefit costs comprise of the service cost, net
interest on the net defined Hability or asset and the remeasurements of net defined Hability or
assets.

Service costs which include service cosls, past service costs and gains or losses on non-routing
settlements are recognized as expense in profit or loss. Past service costs are recognized when
plan amendments or curtailments oceurs, These amounts are caleulated periodically by
independent qualified actuaries,

Met interest on the net defined liability or asset is the change during the period in the net defined
benefit liability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determined by applying
the discount rate based on government bonds to the net defined lability or asset. Net interest
on the net defined liability or asset is recognized as expense or income in prolit or loss,

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and any change
in the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest on defined liability) are recognized
immediately in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise, Remeasurements
are not classified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Income Taxes

Current tax assets or liabilities comprise those elaims from, or obligation to, taxation authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period. that are uncollected or unpaid at the reporting
pericd. They are calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the calendar
periods to which they relate, based on the taxable profit for the year. All changes to current
tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax expense in the Statement of
comprebensive income.

Deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet Lability method on all temporary differences
at the balance reporting period between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrving
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Linder the balance sheet liahility method, with certain exceptions. deferred tax liabilities are
recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recopgnized for all
deductible temporary dilferences and the carry forward of unused net operating loss carry over
(NOLCO) and unused tax credits from excess of minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over
the tegular corporate income tax. if there are any. to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liahilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax Jaws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting period.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting period and reduced o

the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or pant of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.
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L¥eferred income tax assets and lahilities are offset. if a legally enforceable right exists o set
off current income tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred income
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and same taxing authority,

Under the present Revenue Code, MCIT of two percent (2%) of the gross income as of the end
of the taxable year is herchy imposed on a corporation beginning on the lourth year
immediately following the year in which such corporation commenced its business operations,
when the income tax computed based on MCUT is greater than the tax computed as normal tax
under Subsection (A ) of Section 27 of the Code, for the taxable yvear. The rate has been reduced
to 1% under the CREATE Act. (See Note 24)

Under current tax kaws. corporations subject to income tax are required to file quarterly returns
and pay the corresponding amount of tax, Certain forms of income received by the Company
such as earnings from bank deposits, interest and others have been subjected o withholding
tax at various rates specified by law and remitted by payvors for the account of the Company,
An adjustment return is fled at the end of the taxable year at which time the balance, iT any,
shall be paid.

Earnings Per Share
Earnings per share is computed by dividing net profit by the weighted average number of shares
subseribed and issued and owstanding at the end of the vear,

Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognized when present obligation will probably lead to an outflow of
economic resources and they can be estimated reliably even if the timing or amount of the
outflow may still be uncertain, A present obligation arises from the presence of a legal or
constructive commitment that has resulted from past events,

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation,
based on the most reliable evidence available at reporting period, including the risks and
uncertainties associated with the present obligation. Any reimbursement expected to be
received in the course of settlement of the present obligation is recognized, if virtually certain
asa separate asset, not exceeding the amount of the related provision, Where there are a number
of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required if settlement is determined
by considering the class of obligations as a whale. In addition. long-term provisions are
discounted to their present values, where time value of money Is material.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate,

Contingent liahilities are not recognized in the financial statements, however, they are disclosed
il material. In those cases. where the possible outflow of economic resource as a resull of
present obligations is considered improbable or remote. ar the amount to be provided for cannot
be measwred reliably. no liability is recopnized in the financial statements.

Probable inflows of economic henefits that do not yet meet the recognition criteria of an asset
are considered contingent assets, hence, are not recognized in the financial statements.,

Events Adter the Reporting Period

Events afier the reporting period that provide additional information about the Company’s
financial position at the reporting period (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial
statements. Post vear-end events are disclosed in the notes when material.
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Significant Accounting Judgmenis and Estimates

The Company’s financial statements prepared in accordance with PFRS require management
to make judgments and estimates that affect amounts reported in the financial statements and
refated notes. Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations ol future events that are believed o be
reascmable under circumstances. Actual results may ultimately differ from these estimates.

Critical Judgments in Applving Accounting Policies

In the provess of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the
following judgments, apart from those invelving estimation, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

Determination of Functional and Presentation Currency

Hems included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the curreney of
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the functional currency ), The
fnancial statemsnis are presented in Philippine pesos, which is the Company's functional and
presentation currency.

Determination of Clperating Lease
Company as a lessee — The Company entered into a lease agreement with a term of one (1)
year and renewable upon mutual terms by the parties.

Rental expense amounted to P363,686 in 2023 and P963,747 in 2022 {Please see Note 21),

Categories of Financial Instruments

The company classifies a financial instrument, or its component parts, on initial recognition as
a linancial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument based on the substance of the
contractual arrangement and the definitions of financial asset, a financial liability ar an eguity
instrument. The substance of a financial instrument. rather than its legal form. governs its
classification at initial recognition and re-e¢valuates this designation at every financial reporting
date (Please see Note 5.

Impaimment of Financial Assety

The Company determines when an investment is other-than-temporarily impaired. This
determination requires significant judgment. In making this judgment. the Company evaluates,
among other factors, the duration and extent to which the fair value of an investment is less
than its costs: and the financial health of and near-term business outlook for the investee,
including factors such as industry and sector performance, changes in technology and
aperational and financing cash flow,

Provisions and Contingencies

Judgment is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and contingencies.
Paolicies on recognition and disclosure of provision and disclosure of contingencies are
discussed in Mote 2 — Provisions.

Estimates

The estimates and assumptions used in the financial statements are based upon management’s
evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances of the Company’s financial statements. Actual
resulls could differ from those estimates. The following are the relevant estimates performed
by Management on its December 31, 2023 and 2022 financial statements;
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Valuation of Financial Instrumenis

The Company carries certain financial instruments at fair value, which requires the extensive
use of accounting estimates and judgment. Significant components of fair value measurement
were determined using verifiable objective evidence from observable active markets and other
valuation technigues including the use of mathematical models, However, the amount of
changes in fair value would ditfer if the Company utilized different valuation methods and
assumptions. Any change in fair value of these financial assets and liabilities would affect profit
and loss and equity.

Management valuation methods and assumptions in determining the fair value of the
Company’s financial instrument are discussed in Note 5.

Allowance for Impairment Losses of Receivables

Allowance is made for specilic and groups of accoums. where objective evidence of
impairment exists.  The Company evaluates these accounts based on available facts and
circumstances, including, but not limited to, the length of the Company’s relationship with the
customers, the customers” current eredil status based on third party credit reports and knewn
market forces. average age of accounts, collection experience and historical loss experience.

Allowanee for impairment losses amounted P3,745,805 in both 2023 and 2022, (Note 8)

Useful Life of Property and Equipment

The Company estimates the useful lives of property and equipment based on the period over
which the assets are expected to be available for use. The estimated useful lives of property
and equipment are reviewed periodically and are updated if expectations differ from previous
estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or
other limits on the use of assets. In addition. estimation of the useful lives of property and
equipment is based on collective assessment of industey practice, internal technical evaluation
and experience with similar assets, 1t is possible. however, that future results of operations
could be materially affected by changes in estimates brought about by changes in factors
mentioned above. The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for any period would be
affected by changes in these factors and circumstances. A reduction in estimated useful lives
of property and equipment would increase recorded operating expenses and decrease non-
current assets,

Property and equipment. net ol accumulated depreciation. amounted to P28.701.556 in 2023
and PI0.893,087 in 2022, (Please see Note 10),

Impairment of Non-financial Assets

PFRS requires that an impairment review be performed when certain impairment indicators are
present,  The Company’s policy on estimating the impairment of non-linancial assel is
discussed in detail in Note 2 — lmpairment of non-financial assets.  Though management
believes that the assumptions used in the estimation of fair values reflected in the financial
statements are appropriate and reasonable, significant changes in these assumptions may
materially affect the assessment of recoverable values and any resulting impairment [oss could
have a material adverse effect on the resulis of operations. Based on Management’s assessment,
there is no impairment [oss on non=financial assets needed to be recognized in 2023 and 2022,

Realizable Amount of Deferred Income Tux Assets

The Company reviews its deferred income tax assets al each reporting period and reduces the
carrving amount to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized.

Deferred income tax assets amounted to P36.681.396 and P24.356.675 in 2023 and 2022,
respectively (Please see Note 24).
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Liabilitv for Insurance Claims

Estimates have been made bath of expected ultimate cost of claims reported at the reporting
period and for the expected ultimate cost of the claims incurred but not vet reported ot the
reporting period. It can take significant period of time before the ultimate claims cost can be
established with certainty and for some type of policies. unreported claims significantly
comprise the claims payable presented in the Statement of linancial position, At each reporting
date. prior year claims estimates are assessed for adequacy and changes made are charged o
the Statement of comprehensive income at a non-discounted amount for the time value of
money.

Insurance claims pavable as of December 31. 2023 and 2022 amounted to P 101,033,893 and
P158,237,340, respectively. (Please see Note 14},

Emplovee Retirement Benefits

The determination of the Company’s obligation and cost of pension and other retirement
benefits is dependent on the selection ol certain assumptions used by an actuary in calculating
such amounts, Those assumptions are described in Note 23 and include, among others, discount
rate, expected rate of return on plan assets and salary increase rate. In accordance with PFRS,
actual results that differ from the assumptions are accumulated and amortized over future
periods and therefore, generally affect the recognized expenses and recorded obligation in such
future periods,

The estimated retirement benefits obligation amounted to P6,034.781 in 2023 and P4.557.6235
in 2022, The accumulated actuarial gain, net of tax, amounted to P2,379.514 in 2023 and
P2,081,150 in 2022 (Note 17). Retirement benefit expense amounted to P1,874.974 in 2023
and P1.436,176 in 2022, (Note 22)

Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Company is exposed to a variety of financial risk in relation to its financial instruments.
The Company's financial assets and liabilities by category are summarized in Note 5, The main
types of risks are insurance risk, market, credit and lquidity.

The Company does not actively engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative
purposes nor does i write option. The most significant fnancial risks to which the Company
is exposed to are described as follows.

Insurance Ris

The risk under any insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the
uncertainty of the amount of the resulting claim. By the very naiture of an insurance contract,
the risk 15 random and therefore unpredictable,

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of probability is applied to pricing and
provisioning, the principal risk that the Company faces under the insurance contracts is that
actual claims and benefit payments exceed the carrying amount of the insurance liabilities. This
could occur because the frequency of the severity of claims and benefits are greater than
estimated.

Insurance events are random and then the actual number of the amount of claims and benefits
will vary [rom year to year from the estimaled established using statistical technigues.
Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance contracis. the smaller the
relative variahility about the expected outcome will be, In addition. a more diversified portfolio
is less likely to be affected across the board by a change in the subset of the portfolio. The
Company has developed its insurance underwriting strategy 1o diversify the type of insurance
risks accepted and within each of these categories to achieve a sufficiently large population of
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risks to reduce the variability of the expected outcome. Factors that aggravare insurance risk
include lack of risk diversification in terms of type and amount of risk, geographical location
and type of industry covered,

Apart from the Company’s risk management function, regulators also apply a vital role in the
insurance industry in ensuring that policvholders and creditors are assured of any claims that
may arise within the term of the policy. The Insurance Commission (1C) imposes:

e Risk-based capital tramework that will effectively manage the equity requirement of the
Company

s Margin of solvency which requires an appropriate ratio of admitted assets over admitted
liahilities

o A mandatory reserve of highly-liquid debt instrumems to answer the claims of policy
holders and creditors

o And minimum siatutory nel worth to streamline the operation of insurance indusiry,

Internally, the Company manages its risks through underwriting strategy and reinsurance
ﬂ!'l":"al'lgEI'l.'IETILE.

The underwriting strategy is intended 1o ensure that the risks underwritten are well diversitied
in terms of type of risk and the level of insured events. Other reinsurance facility entered
includes surplus treaties, catastrophe cover and facultative reinsurance.

The concentration of insurance claims as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

2023
Kl Met
Gross Recoverable Liahility Yo

Fire T2 489 208 54,040,596 18448612 T
Engineering 43260 43.260 - %
Bonds 5,000,000 - 3,000,000 1%
Muotor Car 22795393 1,180,324 21,615,068 47%%
PA GR7.635 126,004 561,631 1%
Miscellaneous 18397 6,308 12,0540 o

101,033,893 55396491 45637402 100%%

2022
R Net
iross Recoverable Liability e

Fire | 30,500,055 117,940,330 21,568,705 6%
Engincering 250,085 21,906 228.778 %o
Bonds 5.000.000 - 5.000.000 3%
Motor Car 12,760,768 1,755.167 11,065,601 2084
PA 674782 2700 672,072 %%
Miscellancous 42,050 26,282 15769 a

158237340 119746415 38490926 1K
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Financial Risk

The Company is exposed to financial risk through its financial assets, financial liabilities,
reinsurance assets and insurance liabilities, In particular, the key financial risk is that the
proceeds from its financial assets may not be sufficient to fund the obligations arising from its
insurance contracts. The most important components of this financial risk are credit risk,
Ligquidity risk and market risk.

The risks arise from open positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of which
are exposed to general and specific market movements. The risk that the Company primarily
faces due to the nature of its investments and lHabilities is interest rate risk,

Mar] i
The Company is exposed to market risk through its use of financial instruments and specifically
Lo interest rate risk which result from both operating and financing activities.

Inierest Rote Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk 1o [uture earnings or equily arising from the movement of Interest
rates, Changes in interest rates affect (1) the Company’s earnings by changing its net interest
income and the level of other interest rate-sensitive income and operating expenses; and (2) the
underlying economic value of the Company's assets, liabilities and off-balance shect
instruments by means of reducing the present value of future cash flows (and in some cases,
the cash flows themselves), The Company exposure to changes in market interest rates is only
through the “Cash in bank™, “Cash equivalents”™ and “Government honds™, which is subject to
variable interest rates.

The following table demonstrates sensitivity of the Company’s profit before tax and equity to
reasonable possible changes in interest rate of +10/~10 and +100/-100 basis points of the
Company’s cash In banks and notes payable. respectively, on December 310 2023 and
December 31, 2022, These changes are considered to be reasonably possible based on
observation of current market conditions.  All other variables are held constant.

Change in Eflect on Chanze in Effaet on
basis pomts  Met results Fguiy nasis points Mot resuks gty
023
Financinl assels
Cesh and
cash equivitken|s ¥ o0 a6, Tl 7361 Lt (586,701} (T7a01)
Government bonds T <100 1,199,843 Q3.ET5 =) {1,199 543} (939,873
2,190,544 1757235 {2, 196, 544) {1,757.235)
W32
Finpncial assets
Cashoand
cash equivalents " et IR AT =10 {50008 (472,774)
Government bonds © <100 123285 LONZ 2R3 «[iHi (123285 { LAHIZ 283}
1,843,812 1,475,058 {1.843.822) {1.475.058)

oreign Currency Risks
The Company has no significant exposure to foreign currency sk as most ransactions are
denominated in Philippine Peso, its functional currency.

Credil Risks

Credit risk refers to the potential loss arising from any failure by counterparties to fulfill their
obligation. as and when they fall due.
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Credit risk limit is also used to manage credit exposure which specifies exposure credit limit
for each intermediary depending on the size of its portfolio and its ability to meet its obligation
hased on past experience.

Key areas where the Company is exposed to credit risk are;

= Reinsurer’s share of insurance premiums,
= Amounts due from reinsurer’s in respect of claims already paid.
s Amounts due from insurance contract holders, and insurance intermediaries.

The Company structures the levels of credit risk it accepts by placing limits on its exposure to
a single counterparty, or groups of counterparty, and to geopraphical and imdustry sepments.
Such risks are subject (o an annual or more [requent review.

Limits on the level of credit risk by category and territory are approved quarterly by the
reinsurance depariment. Reinsurance is used to manage insurance risk. This does not howewver,
discharge the Company's liahility as primary insurer. |f a reinsurer fails to pay a claim for any
reason, the Company remains liable for the payment to policyholder.

The credit worthiness of reinsurers is considered on an annual basis by reviewing their financial
strengih prior to finalization of any coniract.

The table below shows the credit quality of financial assets as at December 31, 2023 and 2022:

223 High Grade 5?::."::" lowGrade  Gross impaired J::‘m:;:::r Fatal
Coshi and cash equivalenis LG UL R - - - - U Bis ELE
Insurumce recevalie 214,273 440 M 335,534 B33 712 3745 003 3745 1Y) 300,326, HEY
Financial asaet 5t FVPL BT 0 070 . . - - B0 0404 070
Finangial asser o FWICH . B 240 21,866 . . hhh 156

Fioameial usszi

at amortized cost A28 T4 097 - - - - 328749 057
1515801 426 29 1RD 026 #5510 578 3 T45.005 (1745 W05 61051530

Allowance Ti

22 High Grage  Ciandand Line Ciratie . Gross foapireq “19WARCE: fox Total

Girade Impabrisent
Cosh andd cash equvnlents 590 006,794 - - - - 9116754
Insurunee receavobis 164, 121 449 35,571,759 9] 434413 3745805 13, 745.8405) 313147622
Financial asset st FYPL 1024, 328 521 - - - - 1,024 5328 521
Finameint azzet a1 FWOCT . AT0,920 1,844 . . 2 TRe

Frnancial assel

ol s aed cost 2128515891 . - = - 22852589

1,478,092 A6 4,542,679 9] ATE2TY 3,745 805 (3,745 405)  1a2A 111614

High grade cash and cash equivalents are deposited in reputable banks.

High grade receivables pertain to receivables with high collectivity, standard and low grade
receivahles consist of receivable with delay in pavments,
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High grade Financial Asset at FVPL and Financial Asset at amortized cost consist of
government bonds,

Standard grade Financial Asset at FVOC] consists of investment in quoted equities and low
grade Financial Asset-at FVOC| consists of investment in unguoted equity shares,

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the carrving amount of insurance receivables represents
the maximum credit exposures, which is aged as follows:

; Reinsurance [rig from ceding
Premium due and .
necivienshle coanpanics and Totul
el lected g
o lisses FEIRSUNETS
1023

Lurrent §9,395.526 (43,830,136 ¥ 8,172 172121653
3 days past due not over H days 23,198,350 - 78357 30k, 281.921
Sib cheys pust due not over 120 davy 3337146 - 340 11279089
Chver | 40 davs (35.517.712 - 31,126,512 Y, hdd, 224
Tatal 115448574 143,830,156 53,048,158 311,326,448

Reinsurnee e [rom ceding

Premivim due and it N .
recoverable coimpanics ond Tl
incolhected ;
o Jossgs reinaLrer
22

LCurrent LB, 15he, 134 134,547 338 8ATT N2 [y, 121,450
ik s past due it over W davs Niu3 468 - 057411 30,231,279
Uik s past due notover 120 diys 17,338,277 - 7,902 M1 23 350 4R
Orgr 120 davs ShM14.795 - 353620 S 4344103
Totul 13162677 134,347 338 1,437 00 313147622

Ligquidity Risks

Liguidity risks or funding risks are the risks that the Company will encounter in raising funds
o meet its commitments and obligations,  Ligquidity risks may result from difficultv in
collections or inability to generate cash inflows as anticipated.

The Company’s objective in managing its profile is:

s (0 ensure that adequate funding is available at all imes;
= oomeet commitments as they arise without incurring unnecessary cost;
s (o be able to access [unding when needed at the least possible cost:

to regularly monitor and evaluate its projected cash flow

The Company’™s financial habilities have contractual maturities with one (1) year as follows:

2023 2022
Insurance liabilities 336,566,109 340.915,637
Accounts and other pavables 30,640,382 26.840.268

367,206,491~ 367755905
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5. Categories of Fair Values of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Comparison of Carrying Values and Fair Values
The carrving values and fair values of the categories of financial assets and liabilities presented
in the statements of financial position are shown below:

2023 N2
Carrving values Fair vilues Carry ing vilugs Fair values
Financisl assels
Cush and cash equivalents 99 695118 99695118 S0, T 39,116,794
Oiher pssets 19,798 466 29798 466 14887342 19,887 342
Fimancial asset a1 FVPL B71.094070 8701.094.070 |24.328 52 16024328521
Financial asset a1 FVOCT 606,350 b, 3506 2, 7hA 062 76
Fmancial nsset ot amoned cosi 328,749,097 J28.T449.047 238525801 JIRA25.801
Ckher fimancial asset
Inzumnee receivahle 310,326,588 310326888 313,147,622 313147622
1.640,329,99% 164032999 | 85,548 556 B e e
Chther financial linbilities
Insurance liabilitics 336,506,109 336,506,109 MOSF563T 015,637
Ageomnts and other payables 30,640,382 J0.640,382 20 2R o 840, 268
I6T 206491 367206491 307,755,905 67,755,005

Because of their short period, management considers the carrying amounts recognized in the
statement of financial position 1o be reasonable estimates of the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents. insurance receivables. other assets. insurance liabilities and accounts and other
pavables.

The fair values of financial asset at FYPL and financial asset at amortized cost are based on
government bond rates, Financial assets at FYOCH are based on the guoted market price in the
PSE for quoted shares while the unguoted shares are carried at carrving amount which
approximate their fair values as at December 31, 2023 and 2022,

Fair Value Hierarchy Measurement
The table below presents the hierarchy of fair value measurements used by the Company:

Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
December 31, 2023
Financial Assetat FVFL . BT1.094.070 - £71.004.070
Finzncial Asset at OC] - - Bh6.356 fhith. 356
Financial Asset at amortized cost . 328,749,007 - 328.749.097
Lavel | Leve] 2 Level 3 Total
December 31, 2022
Financial Assetat FYPL - |.024.328.521 . 1.024.328.521
Financial Azset at OC| & - G2 7RG G492 TR
Financial Asset ot amortized cost - 228.323.891 - 228,323,891
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Ihe different levels have been detined as follows:

s Level |: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

e Level 20 inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
tor the asset or liability, either directly (2.2, as prices) or indirectly (e.g. derived from
prices); and

s Level 3: inpuls for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
{unobservable input).

There were no transfers of financial instruments between level 1, 2 and 3 during 2023 and 2022,

6. Capital Management Objectives, Policies and Procedures

The Company manages its capital requirements by assessing shortfalls between reported and
required capital levels on a regular basis. Adjustments 1o current capital levels are made in light
of changes in economic conditions and risk characteristics of the Company s activities.

Required Minimum MNet Worth

Externally imposcd capital requirements are set and regulated by the Insurance Commission
(IC), The requirements are put in place o ensure sufficient solvency margins, Further
objectives are set by the Company to maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios
in order to support its business obhjectives and maximize shareholders value,

On August 15, 2013, the IC approved the amendment of Republic Act No. 10607 known as
“The Insurance Code” and was issued on Auwgust 22, 2013, The amended Insurance Code
provides the required minimum Net Worth for non-life insurance companies doing business in
the Philippines.

The required minimum MNet Worth is as follows;

Net worlh Compliance Date
250,000,000 On June 30, 2013
50,000,000 O December 31, 2016
OO0, 000,004 On December 31, 2019

1300, 000,000 On December 31, 2022

At the meetings held on September 4, 2008 and December 26, 2019, the Corporation’s Board
of Directors by majority vote and the stockholders® affirmative vote of at least two thirds (2/3)
of the outstanding capital stock, respectively. approved the increase in capital stock of the
Corporation from Eight Hundred Million Pesos (PBO0.000.000.00) divided into Two Million
(2.000.0007 shares with a par value of Four Hundred Pesos (P400) per share to One Billion
Four Hundred Fifty Million Pesos (P 1450,000,000.007 divided into Three Million Six Hundred
Twenty Five Thousand (3.625,000) shares with a par value of Four Hundred Pesos (P400) per
share.

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company is in compliance with the required Net worth
as provided in “The Insurance Code”,
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Inadmissible Asseis

In any determination of a financial condition of any insurance company, there shall be allowed
and admitted as assets only such assets legally or beneficially owned by the insurance company
as determined by the Commissioner, The following assets shall in no case be allowed as
admitted assets of an insurance company:

1. Goodwill, rade names, and other like intangible assets;

2. Prepaid or deferred charges for expenses and commissions paid by such insurance

COMpny:

Adwvances from officers which are not adequately secured and which are not previously

allowed by the Commissioner, as well as advances to employees, agents and other

persons on mere personal security;

4, Shares of stock of such insurance company, owned by it, or an equily therein; as well

as loans secured thereby:

Furniture, furnishing, fixtures, safes, equipment, library, stationery, literature and

supplies;

6. lNems of hank credits representing checks, drafis, or notes returned unpaid aller the
date of settlement:

7. The amount, if any, by which the aggregate value of investments as carried in the
ledger asscts of such insurance company exceeds the aggregate value thereol as
determined in accordance with the provisions of Insurance Code and/or rules of the
Commissioner; and

8, Any assel, as the Commissioner from time to time determine to be non-admitted assets

LFY )

T

The inadmissible assets of the Company as at December 31, 2023 and 2022 include the
fallowing:

MNote 2023 2022
Furniture. fixtures and office equipment. net 10 1,100,292 1.321.773
Oither assets, net of accrued investment income 13 14,838,036 12,442,706
Deferred tax assels 24 36,681,396 24.356,675

52,619,724 38,121,155

Capital Management Objectives

The Company's capital management objectives are 1o ensure the Company”s ability to continue
as a going concern and to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing produets and
services commensurately with the level of risk.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the ¢arrving amount of equity as presented on
the face of the Statement of financial position. Capital for the reporting periods under review
is sutmmarized as [ollows:

2023 2023
Total Habilities 380,036,933 376,099,983
Total equity 1,413,540.,991 1.394,310,697
[Debt to equity ratio .27 (.27

The Company sets the amount of capital in propartion to its overall financing structure, i.e.,
equity and financial liabilities. The Company manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of
the vnderlying asscts; In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders or issue new shares,
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Cash and Cash uwivalents

This account consists of;

1023 2022
Cash on hand 25,000 20,000
Cash in banks 73,670,118 30,622,869
Cash equivalents 26,000,000 HATI25
Total 99,695,118 39,116,794

Cash in banks are interest bearing account balances maintained in various banks of the
Company. These generally earn interest at rates based on daily bank deposit rates ranging from
0, 1% 1o 0,1 5% for the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022,

Cash equivalents are shori-term special deposits which are placed for varying periods
depending on the immediate requirements of the Company, earn inlerest al rate ranging from
[.50% to 3.60% in 2023 and 2022, Interest earned from cash and cash equivalents amounted
o P132,235 00 2023 and PA72,817 in 2022, (Note 20)

Insurance Receivables

This account consisis of the following:

2023 2022

Premiums due and uncollected 113,448,574 113,162,677
Due from ceding companies and reinsurers 50,380,095 57,770,141
Less: Allowance for impairment losses 3,745,805 3,745,803

46,634,890 54024336
Reinsurance recoverable on losses 143,830,156 139547338
Funds withheld by ceding company 6,413,268 6.413.270
Total 310,326,888 313,147,622

Premiums due and uncollected is net of commission payable amounting to P39,304,575 in 2023
and P27,677,525 in 2022. The amounts due from ceding companies and reinsurers pertain to
assumed premiums. No additional provision for impairment losses was recognized for 2023
and 2022,

Allowance for impairment losses includes receivable from suspended companies in 2023 and
2022,
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9. Financial Assets

Financial assets with quoted prices are measured al fair value while unquoted linancial assels
are carried at cost. The difference between the acqguisition cost and the fair value is reflected as
deduction to equity. Investment in bond which management intends to hold until maturity is
measured at amortized cost which approximates its fair value.

2023 2022

Investment in stock - linancial assel at FYOC]

Quoted eyuity shares 644,490 G70,920

Unguoted equity shares 21,8606 21866
Investment in government bonds

Financial asset at FVPL 871,094,070 1024328521

Financial assel at amortized cost 318,749,097 228,525,891
Balance, December 31 1,200,509,523 1,253 847,198

Investment in government bonds has a term ranging from one (1) to twenty-five (23} years
earned an interest rates rapging from 2.38% 10 9.25% in 2022, Imerest earned from govermment
bonds amounted to Pa1.312,171 in 2023 and P30.823,080 in 2022, (Nate 20).

Movement of lnancial assets is as follows:

2023 2022
Investment in government bonds
Fmancial asset at FVPL
January | 1.024,328.521 072,506,230
Acquired{Matured) 32,674,745 T1096.329
Amorttabion on diseount (1,402,9%4G) 2021.792
Amortzation on prenium 3.431.450 (1.254.533)
Reclassified to HTM - Amortized cost (187.937.650) (20041.297)
December 3 871,094,070 1.024.328.52 1

Financial asset at amortized cost

Face Value 225,000,000 225.000,000
Matured (87 500,000 { 20000000
Unamortized discount (1.710.858) (908.752)
Unamortized premium 5,459,955 4434643
Reclassification from AFS - Fair vahe 187,500,000 20,000,000
December 31 328,749,097 228.325.89]
Investment in stock - Financial asset at FYOCI

January | 992,786 1026266
Fair value adjustment (326,430) {33480}
December 31 66,356 062,786
Total 1.200,509,523 1253847, 198
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I'he maturity profile of invesiment in government bonds is as follows:

2023 2022
Financial asset at FVPL

Due within one yvear 74,752,138 410,167,649
Due bevond one vear T00,341,932 Gl4 160873
871,094,070 1,024,328,521

Financial asset at amortized cost
Due within one vear = 8,730,000
Due bevond one vear 328,749,007 219,775.89]
Balance, December 31 1. 199,843,167 1.252,854,412

The movement of revaluation reserve on financial asset at FVOCI 1s as follows:

023 022
Balance, January | {602,640) (369.160)
Fair value adjustment {326.,430) (33,4800
Balance. December 31 (929.070) (602, 640)
1. Property and Equipment, Met
The details of this account follow:
CfTice premises
and Fumitures and office | TamspoTtation
Improvemenis cruipmeni Euipmen Taial

Cost

Balamee, December 31,2021 63,723,630 16019933 201,55 54045117
Additions 28062 14 {Th6 875} (5006615
Balanee, Decemiber 31, 2027 63,723,630 16, 30,148 1314679 83,544,450
Additions| Eisposal y 2831373 . 155,171
Balanee, Deeember 31, 2023 63,723,630 16, 3549520 131467y B3,827.824
Accumulated depreciation

Ralanee, December 31, 2021 34,182,248 [4.34%1.3491 250,257 30,823,890
Deprecinlion expense 1.970.069 592083 9, 188 23720
[Yisposal - - {744, T ) { T4, Tk s
Balanwe, December 31, 2022 6,152,317 149584 374 1L.514.679 F2A5L370
Dieprecinstion expense RURITAY Sl 855 - 1,474,923
Disposal

Palanue, December 31, 2023 38,122,380 15489234 1,514,604 35,126,243
Net book value

December 31, 2023 301,244 1,1, 2492 - 28,701,536
December 11, 2022 29571313 LI2ZETT - 30,807 087

Page 37



SG1 Philippines General Insurance Company, Ine,
Moves tor financiel stitements

In December 2012, the Company obtained the services of an appraisal company accredited by
the Insurance Commission, to appraise the value of the office premises in 15" floor of Citibank
building, Makati City, Philippines, consisting of an office condominium unit and three parking
lots. The appraisal of the particular property has been coordinated with and approved for
recording by the Insurance Commission. The appraisal increase was recorded at P20,827,014.
The recorded cost of office premises and improvements is P44.216.286, as at December 31,
2012, Depreciation on the revaluation increment in property amounied to PE33.081 both in
2023 and 2022, The balance of the revaluation increment in property amounted to FI1.663.128
and P12.496.208 in 2023 and 2022, respectively,

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the following are fully depreciated properties that are still

in use,
023 Cosl Aceumulaled
Depreciation
Office premises and improvements 680,330 680,330
Furnitures and office equipment 3,917,711 3,917,721
Transportation/computer squipment 11,730,508 11,730,508
Total 16,328,559 16,328,559
2022 Cosl Accumulated
Depreciation
(MTice premises and improvements G80,330 6AR0,330
Furnitures and office equipment 3.235.799 3,235,799
Transportation/computer equipment 11.871.140 [1L871.140
Total |5.787.268 |5, 787,268
11. Deferred Acquisition Cost
Movement of this account is as follows:
2023 2022
Balance, lanuary | 15,145,812 13,467,601
Released during the year (15,145.812) (13.467.661)
Deferred commission expense 36,719,750 25.178.320
Unearned commission ncome (9,537,107) {10.032.508)
Balance, December 31 27,182,643 15145812
12. Deferred Reinsuranee Premium
Movement of this account are as follows:
2023 2022

Balance, January | 54,016,149 32,160,342
Ceded during the vear 124,121,603 99.444.005
Amortized during the year {(117,455,401) (77,588,199
Balance, December 31 60,682,351 54.016.149
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13. Other Assets

This account consists of

2023 2022
Accrued investment income 14,960,431 7443 586
Advances and other assets 5,281,369 3571702
Utility and other deposits 5,738,651 5048038
Casl/ Investment under parnishment 3. 818,016 3.818.016
Total 29,798,466 19,887.342

Cash under garmishment refors to ¢ash on hold by the National Lahor Regulations Commission
(NLRC). The cash was garnished due to order issued by NLRC on alleged counterfeited bonds
issued by perpetrator,

Advaneces and other assets represent cash provided o emplovees, agents, brokers and third
party suppliers of goods and services and prepaid taxes. [t also includes cash in bank that was
dormant as of December 31, 2023,

14. Insurance Liabilitics

This account consists of:

2023 2022
Reserve for unearned premiums 138,505,850 106,660,442
Claims pavable 101,033,893 158,237,340
Due to reinsurers and ceding companies 06,207,310 75.198.700
Funds held tor reinsurers 319,056 819,056

Total 336,566,109 340,915 637

Movement of reserve for unearned premiums is as follows:

2023 2022
Balance, January | 106,660,442 78,033,991
New policies written during the vear 293.740.276 204.906.374
Premiums earned during the year (261,894,868) (176.279,922)
Balance, December 31 138,505,850 106,660,442
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Claims payable consists of the estimated liability for reported claims, accrual of estimated
losses incurred but not reported (TBNR).

2023 2022
Claims reported and loss adjustment expenses 76,935,034 131,482,373
Provision for IBNR 13,484,000 8.854.000
Provision for MFAD 0,735,859 17.040.968
Provision for claims handling expense 879,000 860,000
Total 101,033,893 158237340

15, Accounts an ayahl

2023 2022
Accounts payable 21.397.046 23,663,933
T&XEH Pﬂ_‘}'ﬂhk’ ﬁid’ﬂlld’ﬁ* i,ﬂm,ﬁ ?1
Documentary stamp tax payabke 2,551,022 1.063.778
Others 209,851 127.885
Total 30,640,382 20840208

Accounts payable are payables to non-trade suppliers of goods and services, deferred VAT and
accrued utilities.

16. Equity

The details of the Company s capital stock are shown below:

2023 022
Common stocks - P4O00 par value
Althorized capital stock;
3625000 shares FTI-ISD.Hl]l}.ﬂIJlI

Paid up, January |

3.32{1.!-‘:" ':ihal'r:.‘-'u | .331}.457"‘2‘3" |..3:"D..-Ij ?:ﬂ{’
Total paid up. December 31 1, 330,457,200  .330.457.200
Less: Treasury shares, |, 143 shares 457,200 257200
lssued and suts tanding, December 31 1, 330,000,000 1, 330,000,000

As of December 31, 2023, the Company™s total issued and outstanding share capital is owned
by forty-nine (49) shareholders, fourteen (14) of which own 100 or more shares each,

Share premium amounted to P14,9 12,155 both in 2023 and 2022,

Treasury shares amounted to P4537,200 both in 2023 and 2022,
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Notes 2023 2022
Expired NOLCO g - 7,108,588
Expired excess MCIT 24 515,403 -
Prior year adjustment - Income tax assesment 3,598 -
524,001 7,108,588
Actuarial Gains on Retirement Benefit Liability, Net of Tax
Movernent of this account is as follows:
2023 2022
Balance, January | 2,081,150 2.081.150
Actuarial gain during the vear 298,304 -
Balance, December 31 2,379,514 2081150
Gross amounts are P3.172.685 in 2023 and P2.774.867 in 2022 (Note 22).
Gross Underwriting Income
The account consists oft
2023 222
Premiums written 253.910.244 153,935,492
Premiums assumed 39,830,032 50,970,881
(iross premium written 293,740,276 204.906.374
Reinsurance premium ceded (124,121.603) (99, 444.005)
Net premium retained 169,618,673 105,462,368
Increase in unearned premium (25,179,206) (6.770.644)
Commissions earned 20,589,829 13.767.160
Balance, December 31 165,029,295 112,458 883
. Underwriting Expenses
The account consists oft
2023 2022
Commissions O, 014,988 44,693,379
Claims and losses, net 68,670,375 42,869,232
Other underwriting expense 17,208,032 0,197,927
Ag of December 31 151,893,395 06,760,537
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20, Other Income

The breakdown of other income is as follows:

Notes 2023 2022
Interest income, net of amortization 7.9 61,444,406 51,495,896
Loss on sale of fixed assels (618,565) -
Foreign exchang loss {186,553) (47 449
Gain on sale of fixed assets - 105,000
Miscellaneous - 134
Total 00,639,288 51,554,581
21, Other Expenses
The breakdown ol other expenses is as follows:
Notes 2023 2022
General and administrative expenses
Salaries, wages and employee benefits 33.263.771 23.301.738
Association and pool dues 3,395,342 2.582.310
Travel and transportation 2,440,063 1.382.618
Retirement expense 22 1.874,974 |.4536. 176
Depreciation expense 10 1,641,843 1.739.159
Professional fees 1,588,350 1.601,596
Utilities 1419617 302,232
Represenlation 1,395,553 463,338
Communication 814,531 671,398
Rent 23 563.686 Y63.747
Supplies 525,777 513.468
[nsurance 520,219 523.940
Taxes and licenses 9 490,444 691, 564
Christmas party/ Anniversary expenses 325263 63.714
Repairs, maintenance and janitorial services 195,702 86,160
Books and subscription 46,989 23,340
Training and seminar 30,846 20,357
Promotion, advertising and networking 9,000 Av.on
Miscellaneous 162,153 56,073
Total general and administrative expenses 50,704,122 36,958,940
Interest expense 65,741 103.621
Tuotal expenses 50,769,863 37062561

Dretails of salaries. wages and other benefits are as follows:

2023 2022
Kalaries and wages 29,045,629 20,384,090
Employees' benefits 4,218,141 2,917,648
Total 33,263,771 23,301,738
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22, Retirement Benefits Plan

The Company has a funded, non-contributory defined benefit type of refirement plan covering
substantially all of its employees. The benefits normal retirement is equal to 125% of the final
compensation as of the date of retirement multiplied by years of service.

Actuarial valuations are made at least every two years applying the accrued actuarial cost
method (Projected Unit Credit) taking into account the factors of interest, mortality, disability
and salary projection rates. The Company’s annual contributions to the defined benefit plan
consist principally of payments covering the current service cost for the vear and the required
funding relative to the guaranteed minimum benefits as applicable.

The assumptions used in determining retirement benefit lability for the Company are as

follows:
2023 2022
Present value of the obligation 6,296,360 4,837,094
Fair value of plan assels (261.579) (280.369)
Underfunded obligation 6,034,781 4557625
Liability to be recognized in the
Statement of financial posttion 6,034,781 4,557 625

The movements of present value of the retirement benefit liability recognized in the books are

as tollows:
2023 2022
Balance, January | 4,837,994 3.3588.289
Interest cost 245,286 171,786
Current service cost 1.643,903 1.277.919
Actuarial (pam)loss on:
Changes in financial assumptions (647,470) -
Changes in demographic assumptions (392,%08) -
Experience 69,555 -
Balance. December 31 6,296,360 4.837.994
The movements of fair value of plan assets are as follows:
2023 2022
Balance, January | 280,369 266,840
Interest mcome 14,215 13.520
Remeasurement boss (33,005) -
Ralance, December 31 261,579 280369
The Compuany™s actudl return on plan assets s as follows:
2023 2022
Interest incame 14,215 13,529
Remeasurement loss (33,005) =
Balance, December 31 (18,790) 13.529
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I'he amounts of retirement benefits expense recognized in the Statemenis of comprehensive
income are as follows:

2023 2022
Current service cost 1.643.903 1277919
Interest cost 245,286 171,786
Interest income on plan assets (14,215} (13,5249)
Expense recoonized during the vear 1.874.974 1,436,176

Drefined benefit cost recognized in other comprehensive income (OCT);

2023 2022
Accumulated other comprehensive income, January | (2, 774.867) (2.774.867)
Actarial gain - DBO (430.823) =
Remeasurement loss - plan assels 33.005 -
Defined benefit cost in OC] - meome (397.818) =
Accumulated other comprehensive income, end'mh' {3,172.685) (2.774.867)

For the determination of the movement of the retirement benefits liahility, the following newanal
assumptions were used:

2023 2022
Di:.-';::)unt rate ﬁq ’ “n.fﬂ 5.07%0
Salary increase rate 5.00"% 5.0
Sensitivity analysis as follows;
Decrease in DBO due to 100 bps increase i discount rate (524,996) ; -8.3%
Increase in DBO due 1o 100 bps decrease in discount rate 620,828 @ 10.0%
Increase in DBO due to 100 bps increase in salary increase ra 627,483 ;  10.0%
Decrease in DBO due to 100 bps decrease in salary decrease (534,690) ; -8.5%
Increase in DBO, no attrition rates 819,609 ; 13.0%
Expected future benefit payments as follows:
Financial vear
Yaur | 2412818
Yiear 2 80,78
Year 3 745,857
Yeard 256611
Year 3 507287
Year 6 - |0 6,184,143
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Allocation of plan assefs as follows:

Financial vear

Cash and cash equivalents 0.48%
Unit investment trust fund 75.51%
Debt instruments - government bonds 20,3 7%
Oiher (Markel gains/losses, acerved receivables, ele.) 3.64%
Total 1O 004

Weighted average duration of the retirement benelits liability is 9.1 and 14.1 as of 2023 and
2022, respectively,

. Lease Commitments

The Company is a lessee under cancellable operating leases. The future minimum rentals
payable under this cancellable operating lease are as follows:

2023 2022
Within one vear 241,500 241.500
More than one vear but less than five years - -
Total 241,500 241,500

Total rental expense charged to operations amounted to P363.686 in 2023 and P963.747 in
2022 (Note 21)

Income Taxes

Corporate income tax rate — 25%
The income tax expense consists of the following:

2023 2022

Current:
Regular corporate mcome tax - -
Final tax on interest income 11,926,079 10.199.853
Deferred:
NOLCO (5,781,860) (3.682.698)
Deferred acquisition cost 3,009,208 419,539
Reserve for unearned premium (6,294,802) (1.692.661)
Retirement benefit expense (468,744) (359.044)

(9.,536,197) {5.314.864)
Income tax expense 2,389,882 4 8849809
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A reconciliation of tax on pretax income computed at the applicable statutory rates 1o income
tax expense as reported in the income statements is as follows;

2023 2022
Tax on pretax income at prevailing rate 5,751,331 7.547.592
Adjustments for items subject to lower tax rates:
Interest income (3,435,022) (2.674.121)
Capital gains - (26,250}
Tax effect on:
Non=deductible expenses 26,935 37.768
MNon-taxable ncome 46,638 -
Income 1ax expense 2,389,882 4,884,989
Deferred Income Tax Assets
Components of the Company's deferred income tax (DTA) assets account are as follows;
2023 2322
Reserve for uneamed premium 19,455,875 13,161,073
NOLCO 13,906,043 B 124,183
Retirement benefits obligation 1,508,695 1,139,406
MOTT 874,332 995,561
Allowance for reinsurance receivable 936,452 936,452
Todal 36,681,396 24,356,675
Walidity of NOLCO as follows:
Year Expired in the Applied in the Deferred tax
incurred  Validity Amount current year previous year Balanee assets
2023 2026 23,127.438 - - 23127438 3,781.860
2022 2025 14,730,791 = - 14735 3682698
2024 2026 12.420,089 - - 12429080 3107272
2020 2025 5,336,352 = - 5,336,852 1,334,213
55,624,170 - = 55024170 13,906,043

As provided by BIR Revenue Regulations No. 25-2020 (Section 4) dated September 30, 2020,
the business or enterprise which incurred net operating loss for taxable years 2020 and 2021
shall be allowed to carry over the same as a deduction from its gross income for the next five
(5) consecutive taxable vears immediately following the year of such loss. The net operating
loss for said taxable years may be carried over as a deduction even after the explration of RA
No, 11494 provided the same are ¢laimed within the next five (3) consecutive taxable years
immediately following the vear of such loss.
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CREATE Act

On March 26, 2021, the Republic Act (RA) 11534, known as “The Corporate Recovery or
Tax incentives for Enterprises Act™ (Create Act), was passed into law, The salient provisions
of the Create Act applicable to the Company are as follow:

I Effective July 1, 2020, the corporate income tax rate is reduced from 30% 1o 20% for
domestic corporations with net taxable income not exceeding P3,000,000 and with total assets
not exceeding P HGLOO0000, excluding land on which the particular business entity’s office,
plant, and equipment are situated during the taxable year for which the tax is imposed at 20%,
All other domestic corporations and resident foreign corporations will be subject to 25%
income tax;

2, Minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) rate reduced from 2% to % effective July |, 2020,
o June 30, 2023;

3, Percentage tax reduced from 3% 1o 1% effective July 1. 2020, to June 30, 2023; and

4, The impoesition of improperly accumulated earnings is repealed.

Validity of MCIT as tollows:

Year incurred Validity Amount Applied Expired Balance
2020 2023 515403 - 515403 -
2021 2024 272,238 - - 272,238
2022 2025 2078920 - - 207,920
2023 2026 394,174 c = 304,174

1,389,735 - 515,403 874,332

Deferred Income Tax Liability
Components of deferred income tax liability are as follows:

2023 2022
Deferred acquisition cost 6,795,661 3.786,453
25. Earnings Per Common Share
2023 2022
Profit for the year 20,615,442 25,305,378
Weighted average number of common shares 3,325,000 3,325,000
As of December 31 6,20 1.61

26.

Related Party Transactions

In the ordinary course of trade or business, the Company has transaction with related parties.
Parties are considered to be related iF one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, 1o control
the other party, or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common
control or commeon significant influences.
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kev Manapement Personnel Compensaiion
The key management compensation consists of salaries, allowances and employvee benefits
amounting P'12,826.85% and P9.906,366 in 20023 and 2022, respectively.

Defined Benefits Pla

The Company haz a significant influence over the funding and management of the Company’s
plan assets. The outstanding amount of the plan assets amounts to P26 1,379 in 2023 and
P280L364% in 2022, The Company paid no benefits from plan assets both in 2023 and 2022, No
contribution was made both in 2023 and 2022,

Effect of COVID 19 Pandemic to Operations

The Philippines experienced a pandemic due to the novel coronavirus (COVID- 19), The rapid
spread of the disease has forced the Philippine Government to declare a state of calamity
throughout the country which resulted in the imposition of an Enhanced Community
Quarantine (ECQ) throughout Luzon starting midnight of March 16, 2020 until May 15, 2020,
As of December 31, 2023, the Country is no longer under any alert level or restrictions.

This event, as at December 31, 2023, has not significantly and not materially affected the
Company because the operation still continued during the pandemic,

vl of Financial State (&

The financial statements were approved and authorized for issuance by the Board of Directors
through the Company’s President, Mr. Leandro M. Estreraon |

Supplementary Information Reguired by the Bureau of Interpal Revenue

Revenue Regulations Mo, 15-2010 issued by the Bureau of Internal Revenue requires, in
addition to the disclosures mandated under the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards. and
such other standards and/or conventions as may heretotore be adopted. the Notes to Financial
Statements to include information on taxes, duties and license fees paid or accrued during the
taxahle year. as follows:

Output VAT
Dretails of the Company's output VAT declared are as follows:
VAT - VAT -
VATable Lero-rated exempt 2023 2022

Vatable receipts 222 180,305 12,687,572 23204574 258072254 140473508
Output VAT rate | 2% (1% - 12%0/01% 1 2%010%

Troal 26,661,637 - - 20,061,637 16,198,197
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lnput VAT
Details of the Company”s input VAT claimed are as follows;

2023 2022

Balance, January | - -

Add: Current year's domestic purchases/payments for:
Purchase of services 13,253,850 8207 416
Purchase of capital goods and domestic purchases
of goods other than capital goods - -

Total available input VAT 13.253,850 8207416

Documentary Stamp Tax (DST)
The DST paid/accrued during the reporting period was 29,632,174 in 2023 and P25.471.717 in
2022 for insurance of policies.

Other Taxes and Licenses

OR No. 2023 2022
Business permits various 224877 246,687
Other licenses and various various 265,567 443 877

Total per Statement ﬂ!'(‘u:ﬁmgrehensive Income 4‘]“;1-14 (90,564

Withholding Taxes
The amount of withholding taxes paid/accrued for the taxable year amounted to;

2023 2022
Tax withheld by the company on:
Compensation 3,588,080 2.541.864
Expanded 3.343.246 4,200,129
Final 5300 -
Total 6,936,633 6,750,993

Taxes on lmportation of Goods
The Company has no importation of goods, hence, no taxes were paid during the reporting

period.

Excise Tax
The Company has no excise tax paid during the reporting period.

Others
As of the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company settled the BIR tax assessments from
year 2014,

== (W e
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(A MNon-life Insurance Company )
FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS
December 31, 2023

Ratio Formula 2023 2022
Current Ratio Total Current Assets divided by Total 1.12 [.0]
Current Ligbilities
Total Current Assets 410,022,006
Divided by: Total Current Liabilities 367.206.491
Current Ratio 1.12
Acid test Ratio Cuick Assets { Total Current Assets less Inventories and 1.12 [.01
Other Current Assets) divided by Total Curreént Liabilities
Total Current Assets 410,022,006
Less: Inventories -
Other Current Assets -
Cuick Assets 410,022,006
Divide by: Total Current Liabilities 367.200,4491
Acid test Ratio 1.12
Working Capital ta Waorking Capital divided by Total Asset 0.02 0,01
Total Asset
Working Capital 42815515
Divided by; Total Asset |,793,577.923
0.02
Debt 1o Total Assets Total Debt Divided by Total Asset 0.21 0.21
Ratin
Tatal Debt 380,036,933
Divided by; Total Asset |, 793,577,923
0.21
Debt to Equity Ratio lotal Debt divided by Total Equity 027 027
Total Debt 380,036,933
Diiwvided by Total Equity 413,540,991
0.27
Assel 1o Equity Ratio Fotal Asset divided by Total Equity 1.27 127
Total Asset 1,793.577.923
Divided by Total Equity 1LA13,540,090]
1.27
Interest Coverage EBIT divided by Interest Expense 350,94 | 29236

Ratio

EBIT
Divided by: Interest Expense

23.071.065
63.741

350,94




Crross Profit Margin Giross Profit Divided by Comimission (.45 0,60
Revenoe
Gross Prohit T3 775188
Divided by; Revenue | 65,029,205
0.45
Profit Margin Net Income/(Loss) Divided by: 012 0.23
Revenug
Met Income/{ Loss) 200615442
Divided by; Revenue 165,020,205
0.12
Retum on Asset (ROA)  [Net Incomed| Loss) Divided by: .01 (.01
Average Asset
Net Income/(Loss) 20615442
Divided by: Average Asset [,781,994.301
0.01
Return on Equity Net Income/(Loss) Divided by: no1 | 002
Average Equity
Net Income/(Loss) 2615442
Diveded by: Average Equiry | 403,625 844

(.01




